
Historic Resources Board Meeting - Agenda 
February 26, 2018 

Page 1 

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
 

Monday, February 26, 2018 
3:00 p.m. Tour of Inspection 

4:00 p.m. Open Session   
 

City Hall Council Chambers 
East side of Monte Verde Street 

Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
BOARD MEMBERS:    ERIK DYAR, CHAIR   
      KATHRYN GUALTIERI, VICE CHAIR 
      LYNN MOMBOISSE 
      THOMAS HOOD 
      ALEX HEISINGER 
 
B.  TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 
Shortly after 3:00 p.m., the Board will leave City Hall for an on-site Tour of Inspection. The public is 
welcome to follow the Historic Resources Board on its tour of the subject sites. The Board will 
return to City Hall at 4:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as possible.   
 
C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
D.  APPEARANCES 
 
Anyone wishing to address the Board on matters within the jurisdiction of the Board may do so now.  
Please state the matter on which you wish to speak.  Matters not appearing on the Board’s agenda 
will not receive action at this meeting, but may be referred to staff for a future meeting.  Presentations 
will be limited to three minutes, or as established by the Board.  Persons are not required to give their 
name or address, but it is helpful for speakers to state their name in order that the Secretary may 
identify them.  
 
E.   CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Consideration of the minutes of December 11, 2017 Historic Resources Board Meeting – 
Special Meeting. 
 
F.  ITEM 
 
1. DS 17-459 

Mohammad Rezai, Property owner  
      NE Corner of Forest Road and 8th Avenue 
      Block: 3;  Lot: 11  
      APN: 009-202-015 

 Consideration of a Design Study (DS 17-459) 
for alterations to a historic residence located in 
the Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning 
District 

1



Historic Resources Board Meeting - Agenda 
February 26, 2018 

Page 2 

2. DS 17-174 (Munro)  
Scott and Karen Munro, Property owners  

      Carmelo St., 2 NW of 7th Ave. 
      Block: S;  Lots: 13 and 15  
      APN: 010-267-004 
 

 Consideration of a Design Study (DS 17-174) 
for an addition to a historic residence located in 
the Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning 
District 

 
G.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT   
 
 
H.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 
I.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Historic Resources Board regarding any 
item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Planning and Building 
Department located at City Hall, on Monte Verde between Ocean and 7th Avenues during normal 
business hours. 
 
The next regular meeting of the Historic Resources Board:  Monday, March 19, 2018 
      
The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.  The City of 
Carmel-by-the-Sea Telecommunication’s Device for the Deaf/Speech Impaired (TDD) number is 1-
800-735-2929. 
 
The Sunset Center is equipped with a portable microphone for anyone unable to come to the 
podium.  Assisted listening devices are available upon request to the Board Secretary.  If you need 
assistance, please advise the Board Secretary what item you would like to comment on, and the 
microphone will be brought to you. 
 
 
 
AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

I, Marc E. Wiener, Community Planning and Building Director, for the City of Carmel-by-the-
Sea, DO HEREBY CERTIFY, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of 
California, that the foregoing notice was posted at the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Hall bulletin 
board and posted at the Harrison Memorial Library on Ocean and Lincoln, February 22, 
2018. 

Dated this 22nd day of February 2018, at the hour of 10:00 a.m. 
 
____________________________________________________ 
Marc Wiener, Community Planning and Building Director 

2



MINUTES 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 

December 11, 2017 
 

City Hall Council Chambers 
East side of Monte Verde Street 

Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Erik Dyar at 4:05 p.m.  

PRESENT:  Erik Dyar, Chair  
Kathryn Gualtieri, Vice Chair 
Alex Heisinger 
Thomas Hood 
Lynn Momboisse 

 
              ABSENT:  NONE 
 

 
 STAFF PRESENT: Marc Wiener, Planning Director 

Marnie Waffle, Senior Planner 
  Cortina Whitmore, Historic Resources Board Secretary  

 
B. TOUR OF INSPECTION  
 Tour of Inspection convened at 3:20 p.m.  
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 Members of the audience joined the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
D.  APPEARANCES  

N/A 
 

E. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Consideration of the minutes of the October 16, 2017 Historic Resources Board 
Meeting. 
 
Board Member Hood moved to approve the minutes of the October 16, 2017 Historic 
Resources Meeting with correction. Motion seconded by Board Member Gualtieri and 
carried the following vote: 4-0-0-1.  
 
AYES:                COMMISSIONERS: MOMBOISSE, HOOD, HEISINGER & DYAR 
NOES:               COMMISSIONERS: NONE 

3



ABSENT:           COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN:          COMMISSIONERS: GUALTIERI 
 

G. ITEM 
 

      1. DS 17-289 (Ratcliffe) 
       Chris & Stacey Ratcliffe, Owners 
       Casanova St. 3 SW of 4th Ave. 
       Block: FF; Lot: 29 
       APN: 010-251-024             

 Consideration of a Design Study (DS 17-289) 
for alterations to a historic residence located 
in the Single Family Residential (R-1) Zoning 
District. 

 
Marnie Waffle, Senior Planner presented the staff report.  
 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing. 
 
Speaker #1: Rod Mesquit, Project Designer was available to answer questions from the 
Board. 
 
Speaker #2: Mr. Ratcliffe provided street elevation and retaining wall clarification.  
  
Chair Dyar closed the public hearing. 
 
The Board held discussion. Vice Chair Gualtieri stated the proposed alterations will 
improve the residence and noted the existing windows should not be reused. Board 
Member Momboisse expressed the same concern with the proposed plan to reuse the 
windows. Board Member Hood asked for square footage clarification. 

Marc Wiener, Planning Director answered square footage question and stated the 
project is under the allowable square footage.  

Board Member Gualtieri moved to Issue a Determination of Consistency for DS 17-289 
with special conditions as presented and provided direction to eliminate condition #3, 
differentiate new windows on the west elevation and not to reuse the exiting 
windows. Motion seconded by Board Member Momboisse and carried by the 
following roll call vote: 5-0-0-0. 
 
AYES:                COMMISSIONERS: HEISINGER, MOMBOISSE, HOOD, GUALTIERI & DYAR  
NOES:               COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT:           COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN:          COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 

4



      2. HE 17-422 (Carmel Properties, LLC) 
       Carmel Properties, LLC, Owner 
       Dolores St. 2 SW of 5th Ave.  
       Block: 55; Lot(s): 5 & 7 
       APN: 010-138-003               

 Historic Evaluation (HE 17-422) of a property 
located in the Service Commercial (SC) Zoning 
District.  

 
Chair Dyar recused from Item #2 HE 17-422 (Carmel Properties, LLC).  
 
Marc Wiener, Planning Director presented staff report and summarized property 
history.  

 
Speaker #1: Anthony Kurt noted multiple design changes throughout the years.  
 
Vice Chair Gualtieri opened the public hearing. 
 
Speaker #2: Bob Leidig, Property Owner provided clarification of the intent of the 
proposed project and provided addition design elements.   
 
Vice Chair Gualtieri closed the public hearing.  
 
The Board held discussion.  Board Member Momboisse noted a loss of integrity from 
the front elevation. Board Member Gualtieri questioned the historical significance of the 
property. Board Members Hood and Heisinger both noted the courtyard has lost 
significance.  
 
Board Member Momboisse moved to Issue a Determination of Ineligibility. The 
motion was seconded by Board Member Heisinger and carried by the following roll 
call vote: 4-0-0-1. 
 
AYES:                COMMISSIONERS: HOOD, MOMBOISSE, GUALTIERI & HEISINGER  
NOES:               COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT:           COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN:         COMMISSIONERS:  DYAR 
 

G.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Marc Wiener announced a workshop scheduled for January 2018 to discuss the Context 
Statement.  

 
H. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 N/A  
 
I.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 Chair Dyar informed the Board of a fire at the Harmony House. 
 

5



 
J. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned 
at 5:05 p.m. 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Cortina Whitmore, Historic Resources Board Secretary  
 

 
 ATTEST: 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
 Erik Dyar, Chair 
 

6



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

Historic Resources Board 

February 26, 2018 

 
To: Chair Dyar and Board Members 

From: Marc Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 

Submitted by: Matthew Sundt, Contract Planner 
 
Subject:  Consideration of a Design Study (DS 17-459) for alterations to a historic 

residence located in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District  
 
 
Application: DS 17-459 (Rezai) APN:  009-202-015 
Block:   3 Lots:  11 
Location: Northeast Corner of Forest Road and 8th Avenue 
Applicant:  John Mandurrago Property Owner:  Mohammad Rezai 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The property owner proposes to add a 929 square-foot addition to the existing 1,511 square-
foot historic residence built in 1949 by designer and builder Robert Anderson Stephenson.  This 
residence was listed on the Carmel Historic Resources Inventory in 2003.    
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Historic Resources Board continue this application for additional 
review.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The existing residence was built in 1949 and is classified in the DPR form as having an 
architectural style called San Francisco Bay Area Regional Style.  It is on the City’s Historic 
Inventory under California Register Criteria 2 as an architectural design by Carmel architect and 
former city councilman Robert Stephenson, and under California Register Criteria 3, as an 
excellent and intact example of the Bay Area Regional Style.  It falls under the theme of 
Architectural Development in Carmel (1888-1965), established in the 2008 Carmel Historic 
Context Statement.  Its period of significance is 1949.   

7



DS 17-459 (Rezai) 
February 26, 2018 
Staff Report  
Page 2  
 
Character-defining features of the property include its rectangular plan with split-level and low-
pitched roof.  The lower floor is 415 square feet and the upper floor is 1,096 square feet.  Four 
fixed wood framed glass ribbon windows with fixed transoms are situated on the south 
elevation on the upper floor.  The house is sheathed in 1” x 6” horizontal redwood siding.  The 
sloped roof extends at least 2 feet beyond the exterior walls and is supported by cantilevered 
projecting beams supporting the whole roof.  Casement windows articulate the narrow upper 
east elevation with exposed diagonal frame bracing below denoting the original garage.  Robert 
Stephenson’s home is a noteworthy expression of the San Francisco Bay Area Regional Style 
adopted to the “distinctive but modest” Carmel design aesthetic.  The residence retains its 
physical integrity, as constructed in 1949, evoking a strong sense of time and place and of 
feeling and association.  Regardless, in recent years the residence has not been maintained and 
is showing significant deterioration.   
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The applicant proposes a 929 square foot, two-story addition that includes a garage on the first 
floor and two bedrooms and a bathroom on the second floor and will be located to the west of 
the existing residence.  The applicant is proposing to connect the new addition to the existing 
residence via a one-story glass enclosed foyer (hyphen) with a low-pitched flat roof is proposed.     
 
The proposed addition includes clerestory windows at the top of the wall on the north 
elevation, a sloped roof that slopes in the opposite direction of the existing residence’s sloped 
roof (both existing and proposed roofs have a 1.5:12 pitch).  Proposed siding materials on the 
new addition include a combination of stuccos and stone veneer.  Roof material for both the 
existing residence and the proposed addition will include a “built-up” roof (a.k.a., “tar and 
gravel”) that includes a membrane, tar (or equivalent) and gravel.  
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
Phase II Historic Assessment – Alteration to Historic Property:  A Phase II Historic Assessment 
was prepared by the Historic Preservation Consultant, Mr. Kent Seavey, and dated January 15, 
2018 (Attachment D), where he concludes that the proposed project will be executed 
consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic 
Properties, and with the least possible loss of historic material so that the remaining character-
defining features of the historic resource will not be obscured, damaged or destroyed, and the 
proposed new construction reversible.   
 

8



DS 17-459 (Rezai) 
February 26, 2018 
Staff Report  
Page 3  
 
As stated in this Assessment, the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of 
Historic Properties identify four primary treatment approaches to historic buildings. They are 
Restoration, Preservation, Reconstruction and Rehabilitation. Rehabilitation is the 
recommended standard of treatment for the subject property.  Rehabilitation is defined as the 
act or process of making a compatible use for a property through repair, alterations and 
additions while preserving those portions of features which convey it’s historical, cultural, or 
architectural values.  The applicant is proposing rehabilitate the residence.   
 
The Secretary’s Standards encourage “placing a new addition on a non-character-defining 
elevation” and locating alterations to historic properties in areas where previous alterations 
already exist.  There are no previous alterations to the existing structure; however, because this 
is a corner lot there are two elevations that face a street and therefore two potential primary 
elevations.  In Staff’s and the Consultant’s opinion, the west elevation is secondary since it is 
not highly visible from the street due to the slope of the property and low profile of the 
structure.  The east elevation, facing 8th Avenue, should be considered the primary elevation 
because of its visibility and prominence.  For this reason staff can support addition on the west 
elevation.  
 
Standard #9 states that “the new work will be differentiated from the old and will be compatible 
with the massing, size, and scale to protect the historic integrity of the property.”  In staff’s 
opinion, the proposed stucco and stone siding on the new addition are differentiated, but not 
compatible with the horizontal wood siding on the historic residence.  The proposed finish 
materials make the addition appear more prominent and massive.  Staff recommends a more 
subtle differentiation in finish materials, such as vertical wood siding or board and batten wood 
siding.   
 
With regard to compatibility of the massing, the new addition will be five feet higher than the 
existing residence and is not subordinate in size.  The applicant has worked with staff to address 
this issue by lowering the height and revising the roof design from a gable to a sloped roof.  As 
an alternative the addition could be limited to one story, however, there are limited options to 
place a one-story addition of this floor area without impacting the south elevation.  The use of 
wood siding should help reduce the prominent appearance of the new addition. Staff 
recommends continuance of the application so that the applicant can address the finish 
materials.  As an alternative, the Historic Resources Board can accept the application as 
proposed or approve with conditions. 
 

9



DS 17-459 (Rezai) 
February 26, 2018 
Staff Report  
Page 4  
 
Maintenance and Rehabilitation:  The existing residence is showing signs of deterioration and 
disrepair.  Staff recommends that the applicant return with a rehabilitation plan for the existing 
residence as a condition for approving the new addition. 
 
Environmental Review:  The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires 
environmental review for alterations to historic resources that are not consistent with the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards.  If the alterations are consistent with the standards, 
potential historic resource impacts under CEQA do not require further analysis.  A conclusion by 
staff as to whether proposed project is Categorically Exempt from CEQA requirements will 
depend on the decision of the Historic Resources Board during this meeting or during a 
subsequent meeting.  If it is the case the Historic Resources Board makes changes to the 
building at this meeting that are consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards, the 
proposed project, as amended, would be Categorically Exempt from CEQA requirements, 
pursuant to Section 15331 – Historic Resources Restoration/Rehabilitation.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Attachment A – Photos 
• Attachment B – Conditions of Approval 
• Attachment C – DPR 523 
• Attachment D – Phase II Historic Assessment 
• Attachment E –Secretary Standards 
• Attachment F – Project Plans 

10



 

WEST ELEVATION – Secondary elevation – Forest Road 

 

 

 

SOUTH ELEVATION – Primary elevation – 8th Avenue 

11

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment A - Site Photos



 

VIEW AS SEEN FROM FOREST ROAD AT EIGHTH AVENUE INTERSECT 

 

 

EAST AND NORTH ELEVATIONS 

 

12



 

WEST ELEVATION WHERE GLASS ENCLOSED ENTRY FOYER TO BE LOCATED 

13



 
Attachment B – Conditions of Approval 

 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
DS 17-459 
Northeast Corner of Forest Road and 8th Avenue 
Block:  3, Lot: 11 
APN:  009-202-015  
 
AUTHORIZATION:   
 
1. This Determination of Consistency (DS 17-459) authorizes a two-story addition that 

includes a garage on the first floor and two bedrooms on the second floor and would 
extend to the west of the existing residence, a one-story glass enclosed foyer with a 
low-pitched flat roof is proposed to connect the old building with the new building.  The 
exterior wall of the west elevation consists of horizontal 1” x 6” shiplap siding and 
kitchen window that will be removed to allow an open floor plan incorporating the new 
addition and glass enclosed foyer.  The two-story structure includes an internal stairway 
to the upstairs with clerestory windows at the top of the wall on the north elevation, a 
sloped roof that slopes in the opposite direction of the existing sloped roof (both 
existing and proposed roofs have a 1.5:12 pitch), and a stone exterior veneer on the first 
floor exterior up to the first floor top plate with the north elevation having a stone 
veneer extended vertically to the bottom of the proposed clerestory windows.  The 
second floor exterior surface will be colored plaster, and the west and south porches 
will have the 1” x 6” redwood horizontal boards that reflect and acknowledge the 
horizontal shiplap boards of the existing residence.  Roof material for both the existing 
residence and the proposed addition will include a “built-up” roof (a.k.a., “tar and 
gravel”) that includes a membrane, tar (or equivalent) and gravel.  All work shall 
conform to the approved plans except as conditioned by this permit.    

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS:   
 
2. The applicant shall rehabilitate and repair the historic residence as a condition of 

approval.  A rehabilitation/maintenance plan shall be submitted to and approved by the 
Community Planning and Building Department prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
 

14



 
 
DS 17-459 (Rezai) 
February 26, 2018 
Conditions of Approval 
Page 2 
 
3. Prior to the beginning of construction, the applicant shall convene a pre-construction 

meeting to include the contractor and the City’s Project Planner to ensure compliance 
with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties. 
 

4. The new windows in the two story structure will be differentiated from the windows in 
the historic residence.  The applicant shall work with staff to ensure compliance with 
this condition.     
 

5. Stone veneer on the new structure will be reviewed and approved by the City Planner 
and Historic Preservation Consultant. 
 
 

*Acknowledgement and acceptance of conditions of approval. 
 
 
 
______________________  _________________  ___________ 
Property Owner Signature  Printed Name   Date 
 
 
 
Once signed, please return to the Community Planning and Building Department. 

15



State of California - The Resauices Agency
DEFARTMEhIT OF PARKS AilI* RECREATIOI.{

PR$WERY RESSRffi

Frinrary #
g*Rt#

Trinormiai
NRF{F $tats.$s Ccde 55f

fx*har E ie*ince

Review Code Reviewer uels
Fage i of E

FS. ffit8'ler ldentifien:
F?" !-ccafdon:

Rescuree ffaane sn #: {Assigned hy rec*nder} R.cber{ A. Sfep&erso* Ho#se

i i Not $on FuhlEaatiors i- {.inrestriated a. Coun$ fr*anterey

ar:d {FZh as?d FZa on FZd. Attac8r e g-ocatios} Map as areaessa4p"}

Sate T ;R ; ,!/4of
b" USG$ 7.5'*uad
c. Addness:

d. UTM: {Give rnore than ane for iarge and/linear reso{irces} ;

Cn:S Carrnei-by-irle-Ses

enF/

tr14 sS See i

Lip 93921

snffi

e. Other Lccational Data {Enter Parset #, legatr descriptisn, directions t* reseurce, eleuaticn, etc., &s appropriate}

AJ.F. Con-rer 8ffi and Fcresf
{9ta*k FF 3 t-ot 11} {FF= Faradise FafN) Farcef $$o. g-232-"i5

FS. EescniptFoer pmcrfuermourcearJbn'ujoreb.lenb, ls.dedm$n,e'mb"?*,ccndHicxt,Mtrrw,s*e,sdhg,aldbcunda*x)

A spJrt feve/ low-plfcfied shed rcafed house an a sl*ping 40xX EE-{*at {at set oft a west fo easf axrs. The sauth elevatian features 4

{3 x6} srng/e frxed pane gJass frenc& doars leadixg fc en cufside decff cr fhe wesi side, and a paratlel sfaircase feadlng down dc

thp ariainet rlqrRne and driveway sn f&e easf side. Fcur {4'x4'} {ixed iran:e Efass ibban winCaws tryif& 1-1/2'x4'fixed transoms are
sr?uafed abave the grardsre and r#urninafe ffue filasfer &edraom. Tke ariginai garage has been gless*c-rn, with twa corner
6"x6'frxed fran.ie E/ass picfrrre r,vindows efid a 5 x3' S-pane french dsor, creating e dctefisfe,'rs apa*ment.

The whote iiouse ls sheathed rr lx$" Sos?cnta! na{uraf redwocd shiplap srdrfig set *ff by the painted trim wark a{ the doors and
nlndows. I&e shed raaf extends 2 feef &ey*nd f&e walls end r's suppofted btl eantiievered praiecting beams supporti*g the whole
roaf. 2'x4' and 3'x2'casemenf r,yrndows articufate tke narraw upper east elevaticn witk exposed tJragcnal frarne bracing bel*w
denoting tke original downstairs garsge. A, pr*jec{ing stepped brick fireplace denofes the north elevation alang with faur small
regufarly spaced 2'x4' and 2'x2' fixed frame wind*ws.

P3b. Rcsoairse Attnibq,gtes: {t-ist attrihutes and csdes} t-lF-2 Singte Fanirly Residerce

P4.ResouncesFneeent i::Euilding ilStructure f ,Oh.iect i-.Site i,District l-:FlenrentofDlstrlct r-'CIttxer(lsolaies,etc.)

F5a. F$'lotograplr or trrawing (Fit*tograph required for buildings, stru$tu.es, and objects) FSb. Dmrxtptirn of Fhob: fl/erv, dde, mbn #]
I fookrng af southeast elevatien, {View t*ward

narth). Fhato fis: 1857-21, 8/14n401

F6. ffiate Cos'rstruated/Age and $sun$es:
* Prehistoric .:'[-{istoric Both

'!949 - Carmel Buildins Fiies

F7" Swrsaer and Address
Fatricia Stephensan
F.A. frax 259'!
Car*r*1, C,4 S3Stt

F*. Reeonded by: {l,,iarq affiim, and ddrw)
Riehard N. Janbk, F.0. 8*x 22344E
, Carme{ CA g3$2?

F8. Ssie R*a*rded: 11128'/28*i

F1*" Sur"*eyr Type: {Describei
f{Rl - Ce$ne! 2*81

Atfachrmeslte i i NCINE

., l Lacaiion LrtaP

Sltetch Ma1:

3?F. 523t (1€5) Hisf.oryAr?el,rer 4

-i i*.1

i l Contir uaticn She*t
,_-r B uitd ing, Striiciur*, a*d {}foj*r:t fir:rt;rt
r l Areha*olccicai Rec*rrJ

lfi*trrir:{ Rs*ord
LirreBr Fealure itec*rd
Milling Stcti*a ftectrd

Roali Ari Rec*rd I i ilther: {Li6t}--: &rtifa*t Re*ord
I Phatograph Reccnd

.;l';^ryrv^!:,^t.: jj

F'l X . Report e Etaticn: (Cile survey report and other sovrces, *r *lr1*r "n***"i

16

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment B - DPR



State of California - The Resources Agency
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION

BUILDING, STRUCTURE, AND OBJECT RECORD
Page 2 ot 2 NRHP Status Code 551

Resource Name or #: (Assigned by recorder) Robert A. Sfephenson House

81. Historic Name: Robert A. Stephenson House

82. Common Name:

83. Originaf Use: Single Family Residence 84. Present Use: Single Family Residence
85. Architectural Styler Ameican-lntemational Second Bay Region Style

86. Construction History: (Construction date, alterations, and date of afterations)
1 . Permit #1876 (November 7, 1949) Original plans and specifications in files. Designed by Robert Stephenson

($10,500)
2. Permit 90-36 (June 13, 1990) Contractor: Walton Plumbing - Gas Lines No Other Permits - House lntact

E}7. Moved? X No I Yes I Unknown Date: Original Location:
88. Related Featurcs:

B9a. Architect Robert Sfepfienson b. Buifder: Gunnar Swanson

810. Significance: Theme: Architectural Development in Carmel
Period of Significance: Post WWtl Property Type: R-1

Primary #

HRI #

Area: Carmel-by-the-Sea

Applicable Criteria: CR3/
(Discuss importance in lerms of historical or architectural context as defined by theme, period and geographic scope. Also address integrity.)

This house qualifies under Criteria #3 as being designed by local architect Robert A. Stephenson in the American-lntemational
Second Bav Region Style that was developed during and afier World War ll by architects William Wurster, Clarence Mayhew,
and Gardner Dailey in the San Francisco Bay Area as well as Jon Konigshofer, Tom Elston, and William Cranston locally in the
Carmel area. Robert A. Stephenson also qualifies under Criteria #2 as being very active in the city of Carmel on the
Planning Commission and the City Council, and other cMc duties.

Robert A. Stephenson's home is a noteworthy expression of the San Francisco Bay Area regionalist style adapted to the"distinctive
but modesf Carmel design aesthetic. The small residence is beautitully sited in the farthest comer of its naturally landscaped
parcel, mostly set back behind a steeply rising slope. Unlike so many of the local modemist dwellings of the period, the house has
never been painted, allowing the natural rewood siding to become part of the landscape setting. Designer Robert A. Stephenson was
an active participant in community life, seMng for a period of time on both lhe Carmel Planning Commission and the City
Council. The residence retains ils physical integrity, as constructed in 1 949 to a high degree, evoking a strong sense of time and
place and of feeling and association.

811. Additional Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) HP-2 Single Family Residence
812. References:

1. "Modem Style in Carmel Brought Cries of Anguish," by Dorothv
Stephenson, Monterey Peninsula Herald, Sept.9, 1950
2. William Wilson Wurster, San Francisco Museum of Modem Art
Catalog -1996

813. Remarks: Zoning R-1

(Sketch Map wilh north arrour required.)

814. Evaluator:
Date of Evaluation;

Richard N. Janick
1 1/28/2001

d'

Ir
-i

]PItr
t-

I

B."AYF

(This space resen ed for official cornments.)

17



18

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment D - Phase II Historic Assessment



Character-defining features of the property include its rectangular plan;
horizontal natural redwood wall-claddirrg; split-level height: low-pitched shed

roof; banded full-height wood and metal-frarned single light fixed and awning type
windows. It is beautifully sited well back on its naturally landscaped corner lot,
riding the brow of a ridge then dropping off its easteru slope for a below grade

entry, becorning one with its setting.

Evaluation:

The owners propose to add a code required garage, facing Forest Rd., for off
street parking. It will be partially cut into the west side of the sloped parcel with
sotne living space above. The living area will have a shed roof rising toward the
nofih, to differentiate the new construction frorn the historic residence. As
proposed, the living space will be joined to the original house through a simple
glazed hyphen coming off the west side-elevation of the historic building. The new
constnrction will be clad in a combination of earth-toned stncco, with sorne stone

verleer.
All new work will be undertaken in confonnallce with the The Secretary of the

Inlerirtr's Stand.ards.fbr the Treotrilent o.f Hi.storic'Properties, under the Standard

for llehabilitation.
T'he Secretary of the Interiors Standards.for the Treatmenl of Historic

Properties Identify four primary treatrnent approaches to historic buildings. They
are Restoration, Preservation, Reconstruction and Rehabilitation. Rehabilitation
would be the recolnrnended standard of treatment for the subject property,

Rehabilitation is defined as the act or process of rnaking a cotnpatible use for
a property through repair, alterations and additions while preserving those portions
or featrtres which corlvey its historical, cultural, or architectural values.

The Secretary's Standards encourages "placing a rew addition on a non-
character-defining elevation." and locating alterations to historic properties in areas

where previous alterations already exist.
The 1992 National Park Service Illttstrated Guidelines fbr Rehabilitating

Historic Buildings, states that "The Standards are to be applied to specific
rehabilitation projects in a reasonable illallner, taking into consideration econotnic
and technical feasibility. "

As noted above, the Standards recornrnend"new additions be placed on

secondary elevations, and where alteration has already occuffed. In this iustatrce
the proposed addition is off a currently fenced secondary elevation. The uew
garage addition is designed and will be constrncted so that the character-defining
features of the historic building are not radically changed.

L

19



As noted above, the proposed addition is off an inconspicuotls secottdary elevation

on the historic building envelope, and lirnited in size and scale in relationship to

the lristoric bui lding.
The proposed new work will be differentiated frorn the old iu a mauner that

makes clear what is historic and what is new. The garage will be one story, partially

clt into the hillside with a small, one story of living space above. The stucco wall-
cladding will be tinted to blend into the landscape. The new elements will reflect

the existing historic building fabric for continuity of design. The work will be

cornpatible with its size, scale, proportions and rnassing to protect the integrity of
the subject property and its environment. This is oonsistent with Rehabilitation
Standard #2 and#5.If removed in firture, the essential forrn and integrity of the

lristoric residence will be unirnpaired, consistent with Stardards #9 and #I0 .

Impacts of the Proposed Project:

The owners have proposed the following additions fbr contemporary usage.

SOUTH (FRONT) ELEVATION (prirnary)

This is a prirnary elevation that steps down the steep-sloped parcel toward
the east. The historic facade will rernain basically intact, separated frorn the

proposed new garage by a glazedhyphen off the west side elevation of the historic
property.

The exterior wall-cladding of the proposed garage at the upper level will be

in a srnooth, earth-toned cernent stucco, iu contrast to the natural horizontal
redwood siding of the historic main building block. The garage itself will employ

solne stone velteer reflecting the natural rnaterials adjacent. Fetrestration will be

essentially paired casement type. (see photos and plans & drawings provided).

Tlre treatrnent is consistent with those recommended in the Secretary',s

Stand.ards.for tlehabilitation, to assure that the character-defining features of the

historic building are not radically changed, and that the new construction is

cornpatible with the site. [f preserving the historic relationship between building,
landscape features arrd open space. If the proposed garage addition is removed in
future, the essential fonn and integrity of the historic property and its erlviroutnettt

would be unimpaired, consistent with Rehabilitation Standard #10 (see copy of
Rehabilitation Standards provided).

20



In accordance with the Rehabilitation Standards recomlnendations for new

additions, the proposed garage will be kept srnall iu scale, and stepped slightly up

frorn the historic ioof line of the original building, so as not to obscure or radically

chalge the historic appearance of the building envelope.

WEST SIDE-ELEVATION (secondary)

The proposed ground floor garage addition will be partially screened from

the adjacent property to the north by an existing fence. The shed-roof on the Llpper

living space wili rise to the north with a band of clearstory windows at the roof-

walljunctiol. The historic character of the subject property will be preserved by a

u.ryii-ited alteration of features, spaces and spatial relationships that chatactetize

the property, colsistent with Rehabilitation Standard #2

NORTH (REAR) ELEVATION (secondary)

No change is proposed for this elevation'

EAST SIDE-ELE,VATION (PrimarY)

No change is proposed for this elevation'

The proposed work will be in adherence to the Secretary of the

I'terior's edict 
"n.o*uging 

the placing of new additions ou non-character-defining

elevations and locating alterations and additions to tl're historic property itt areas

where previotts changes already exist.

As proposed, the work will clearly differentiate the old from the new, but

will be .o.putible with the size, scale, proportions and rnassing to protect the

iutegrity of ihe subject property and its enviroument. If retnoved in future, the

esseltial fonn and integrity of the historic resource and its environment will be

tunirnpaired.

Conclusion:

The proposed work on the subject properly will be executed consisteut with

the Secretiry,i Standards.for Rehabilitation,with the least possible loss of historic

rnaterial so that the rernaining character-defining features of the historic resottrce

will 1ot be obscured, darnaged or destroyed. The proposed alterations are

reversible 
4

21



22



23



24



SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S STANDARDS FOR THE TREATMENT OF 
HISTORIC PROPERTIES 

 
1. “A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that 

requires minimal change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site 
and environment." 

 
2. "The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved.  The 

removal of historic materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize 
a property shall be avoided." 

 
3. "Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use.  

Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding 
conjectural features or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be 
undertaken."  

 
4. "Most properties change over time; changes that have acquired historic 

significance in their own right shall be retained and preserved."  
 
5. "Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 

craftsmanship that characterize a property shall be preserved." 
 
6. "Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced.  Where the 

severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new 
feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, 
where possible, materials.  Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated 
by documentary, physical, and pictorial evidence." 

 
7. "Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to 

historic materials shall not be used.  The surface cleaning of structures, if 
appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest means possible." 

 
8. "Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and 

preserved.  If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be 
undertaken. 

 
9. "New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy 

historic materials that characterize the property.  The new work shall be 
differentiated from the old and be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and 
architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its 
environment." 

 
10.  "New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in 

such a manner that if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the 
historic property and its environment would be unimpaired." 

 

25

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment E - Secretary of Interior's Standards



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

 
Historic Resources Board 

 
February 26, 2018 

 
To:   Chair Dyar and Historic Resource Board Members 
 
From:   Marc Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 
 
Submitted by: Catherine Tarone, Assistant Planner 
 
Subject:  Consideration of a Design Study (DS 17-174) for an addition to a historic 

residence located in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District 
 

 
Application: DS 17-174 APN: 010-267-004  

Location: Carmelo St., 2 NW of 7th Ave.   

Block: S Lot: 13 & 15 

Applicant: Karen Munro Property Owner: Scott and Karen Munro 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The applicant is proposing to construct a 740-square-foot single-story addition consisting of a 
400-square-foot garage and a 340-square-foot new bedroom and bathroom. On the second 
floor, a 740-square-foot open rooftop deck and gas fire pit will be constructed above the 
footprint of the new addition. All exterior modifications are proposed on the rear (west) 
elevation. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Historic Resources Board issue a Determination of Consistency with 
the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The existing residence is a one-and-two story, wood-framed, Spanish Eclectic style residence, 
constructed in 1928, and known as the ‘John B. Adams House.’  The property is listed at the 
local level of significance, under California Register Criteria 3, in the area of architecture, as an 
excellent and basically intact example of the Spanish Eclectic style of residential design.  It is 
also significant as an original design by Carmel master-builder Michael J. Murphy.  The resource 
is representative of the theme of Architectural Development in Carmel (1888-1965) as set forth 
in the 2008 Carmel Historic Context Statement.  A State of California DPR 523A form was 
prepared for the ‘John B. Adams’ house in 2002 by Historic Preservation Consultant Kent L. 
Seavey (Attachment D). According to the City’s Historic Consultant, character-defining features 
of the residence include the following: 

35



 
DS 17-174 (Munro) 
February 26, 2018 
Staff Report 
Page 2 of 5 
 

  
“It’s one-and-two story height; irregular plan; cement  stucco exterior wall-cladding; 
eclectic mixture of… hipped, gabled and flat roof and terrace surfaces, some clad with 
Mission tiles; eclectic mix of decorative elements within the Spanish Eclectic design 
vocabulary including references to Monterey Colonial formality as well as Spanish hill 
town informality; irregular multi-paned fenestration with single, paired and banked 
fixed, double-hung and banked windows, as well as examples of Spanish Eclectic Style 
decorative trim.” 

 
According to the residence’s DPR form, the existing one-and-two-story residence is irregular in 
plan and rests on a concrete foundation.  The exterior wall cladding is smooth cement stucco.  
The roof system has a low-pitched hipped roof on the main two-story building block, a flat roof 
on the single-story east wing, and a low-pitched hip-and-gable roof on the west wing.  The 
pitched roofs are composition shingle and have slightly overhanging eaves with exposed rafter 
tails, as depicted in the original plans, while the flat roof is tar-and-gravel.  The residence’s 
stucco chimney rises out of the east side of the west wing onto the west wall of the main 
building, south of the ridge line.  The roofs of the main building and the west wing overhang 
recessed open balconies which is characteristic of the Monterey Colonial style.  Fenestration is 
irregular with a wood sash, multiple panes and steel cladding.   
 
The residence is built on a 10,000-square-foot lot that slopes downward to the west by 11 feet.  
The original attached garage on the northwest elevation immediately adjacent to the proposed 
addition was removed and there is no existing covered parking.  According to the project plans, 
the upper level of the residence is 542 square feet, the main level is 1,494 square feet, and the 
lower level is 593 square feet. The total existing square footage is 2,559 square feet while the 
maximum allowed for a 10,000 square-foot lot is 3,300 square feet. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The applicant is proposing to construct a 740-square-foot addition to the rear (west) elevation 
consisting of a 400-square-foot garage and a 340-square-foot new bedroom and bathroom. The 
construction of the addition will require the removal of a large single light window and a door 
on the lower-floor of the rear west elevation.  This single pane window does not appear to be 
original to the residence as the original building plans show a divided light window in this 
location (see Attachment A for photographs and the original building plans).  The applicant is 
proposing to dispose of this single-pane window.  On the roof of the addition, the applicant is 
proposing to construct a 740-square-foot open rooftop deck and gas fire pit. The new deck will 
be accessible from an existing small covered deck off of the dining room.  The existing spaced 
wood railing on the west elevation of the small covered deck will be removed to provide access 
to the new open deck. Staff notes that while the plans show a spaced railing around the west 
and south elevations of the proposed deck, the applicant has decided to make the railing 
around the deck a solid, 42-inch-high stucco wall.  All exterior modifications to the historic 
fabric of the building are proposed on the rear (west) elevation. 
 
 

36



 
DS 17-174 (Munro) 
February 26, 2018 
Staff Report 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
Historic Evaluation Summary: The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires 
environmental review for alterations to historic resources that are not consistent with the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards. The proposed alterations were reviewed by the City’s 
Historic Preservation Consultant and a Phase II Historic Assessment was prepared. The 
Assessment includes an analysis of the proposed changes based on the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties (Attachments D and E). The 
Assessment concludes that the project, as shown on the project plans stamped received on 
December 26, 2017, would not cause a significant change to the listed historic resource and 
would not cause a significant adverse impact on the environment. Therefore, the project would 
be consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards. 
 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards: The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the 
Treatment of Historic Properties identify four primary treatment approaches to historic 
buildings: Restoration, Preservation, Reconstruction and Rehabilitation. Rehabilitation is the 
recommended standard of treatment for this project. Rehabilitation is defined as the act or 
process of making a compatible use for a property through repair, alterations and additions 
while preserving those portions of features which convey it’s historical, cultural, or architectural 
values. Based on the Phase II Historic Assessment prepared by Historic Preservation Consultant 
Mr. Kent Seavey, the project is consistent with the Secretary’s Standards for Rehabilitation. The 
proposed addition and exterior modifications will be at the rear of the residence and will not 
impact the primary elevation.  
 
Standard #9 states, “New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not 
destroy historic materials, features and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The 
new work shall be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the historic materials, 
features, size, scale and proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of the property and its 
environment.” The addition will be constructed on a secondary elevation at the rear of the 
property which, according to Mr. Seavey, was previously altered, as garage was located under 
the gabled upper-story portion of the residence on the north elevation (See original building 
plans in Attachment A).  
 
The new work will be differentiated from the original residence. The stucco wall cladding on the 
addition and the parapet wall of the rooftop deck will be smooth rather than textured like the 
historic wall cladding.  
 
Since historic fenestration is irregular on this property, divided light historic windows vary in  
dimension. The proposed French doors and side lights on the south elevation will be 
differentiated from original windows and doors since they will be modern in appearance and 
will incorporate a wood panel at the bottom portion of the door which is not present in the 
historic portion of the residence.  The final French door design is depicted on the product 
information on sheet A3.2 of the plans pictured below the south elevation, while the French 

37



 
DS 17-174 (Munro) 
February 26, 2018 
Staff Report 
Page 4 of 5 
 

doors shown on the south elevation are not the correct design. Staff notes that these new 
French doors on the south elevation will replace an oriel window that was not original to the 
residence. 
 
The entrance to the single-story garage and the stucco parapet wall of the rooftop deck will be 
visible on the north primary side elevation; however, the garage and deck will be stepped down 
from the historic roofline of the original in order to not to obscure or radically change the 
historic appearance of the building envelope.  The roofing material for the addition is proposed 
to be asphalt shingle to match the existing residence; however, staff notes that the original 
building plans state that the roofing was originally a split shake roof. As previously mentioned, 
the railing around the deck is proposed to be a 42-inch-high stucco wall on all sides of the deck.  
The construction of the deck will require the removal of a large tree limb.  The Forestry 
Department has reviewed the plans and does not see an issue with removing the large tree 
limb in order to install the deck. 
 
Mr. Seavey is not recommending any mitigation for this project as he feels that the project, as 
proposed, is consistent with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation. 
 
Planning Commission Review:  If the Historic Resources Board is able to issue a Determination 
of Consistency with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the proposed addition, this 
project will next be reviewed by the Planning Commission for compliance with the City's 
Residential Design Guidelines for privacy, views, mass and building forms. One potential issue is 
that the Planning Commission may feel that the proposed 740 square-foot rooftop deck may 
constitute a privacy concern since it overlooks the neighboring properties to the west, south 
and north. While evaluation of privacy impacts is not within the purview of the Historic 
Resources Board, the Planning Commission may require design changes to the design of the 
rooftop deck intended to mitigate potential privacy impacts.  Mitigation required by the 
Planning Commission may include moving the stucco parapet wall back from the wall line of the 
addition or installing an additional railing to reduce the size of the deck.  If changes to the 
addition or rooftop deck will significantly impact the compatibility of the addition or rooftop 
deck with the historic residence, the application will be referred back to the Historic Resources 
Board for consideration. 
 
Alternatives: The staff recommendation is to issue a determination that the application is 
consistent with the Secretary’s Standards. Alternatively, the Board could require modifications 
to the plans intended to make the exterior modifications more compatible with the historic 
residence, in which case the application could be continued. Also, the Board could find the 
application inconsistent with the Secretary’s Standards, which would result in either the 
applicant withdrawing the project, or require additional CEQA analysis to evaluate impacts on 
historic resources. 
 
Environmental Review: The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires 
environmental review for alterations to historic resources that are not consistent with the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards. If the alterations are deemed consistent with the 

38



 
DS 17-174 (Munro) 
February 26, 2018 
Staff Report 
Page 5 of 5 
 

Standards, potential historic resource impacts under CEQA do not require further analysis. Staff 
recommends that the proposed alterations be found consistent with the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards and therefore, additional environmental analysis would not be required. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Attachment A – Site Photographs 

 Attachment B – Conditions of Approval 

 Attachment C – DPR 523A Form for ‘John B. Adams House' 

 Attachment D – Phase II Historic Assessment 

 Attachment E – Secretary of the Interior’s Standards 

 Attachment F – Project Plans 

39



Attachment A 

Munro Residence Site Photographs 

 

East Front Elevation (No Changes Proposed to Front) 

 

North Side Elevation 

40



 

North Side Elevation 

 

North Side Elevation and Deck Staking and Flagging 

41



 

Rear West Elevation and Area of Addition 

 

Rear West Elevation and Area of Addition 

42



 

Rear West Elevation and Area of Addition 

  

Side South Elevation and Area of Addition 

43



 

Original Blueprints of the North Elevation drawn by M.J. Murphy in 1928 

 

Original Blueprints of the South Elevation drawn by M.J. Murphy in 1928 

44



 

Original Blueprints of the West Elevation drawn by M.J. Murphy in 1928 

45



 
 

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 

DS 17-174 (Munro) 
Carmelo Street, 2 NW of 7th Avenue  
Block: S; Lots: 13 & 15 
APN: 010-267-004 
 
AUTHORIZATION:  
 
1. This Determination of Consistency for DS 17-174 (Munro) authorizes the construction of 

a 740-square-foot single-story addition consisting of a 400-square-foot garage and a 
340-square-foot new bedroom and bathroom. On the second floor, a 740-square-foot 
open rooftop deck and gas fire pit will be constructed above the footprint of the new 
addition.  The railing around the upper-story deck will be a 42-inch-high solid stucco 
wall.  All work shall conform to the plans dated received December 26, 2017 except as 
modified by the special conditions below and shall conform to the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation. 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS:  
 
2. Prior to the beginning of construction, the applicant shall convene a pre-construction 

meeting to include the contractor and the City’s Project Planner to ensure compliance 
with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties. A 
Building Permit will not be issued until this meeting has occurred. 
 

3. The applicant shall submit a limb removal permit for the removal of the tree limb at the 
deck. 
 

4. Trees shall be protected during construction by methods approved by the City Forester. 
All foundations within 15 feet of significant trees shall be excavated by hand. If any tree 
roots larger than two inches (2”) are encountered during construction, the City Forester 
shall be contacted before cutting the roots. The City Forester may require the roots to 
be bridged or may authorize the roots to be cut. If roots larger than two inches (2”) in 
diameter are cut without prior City Forester approval or any significant tree is 
endangered as a result of construction activity, the building permit will be suspended 
and all work stopped until an investigation by the City Forester has been completed. 
Twelve inches (12”) of mulch shall be evenly spread inside the dripline of all trees prior 
to the issuance of a building permit. 

 
 

46

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment B - Conditions of Approval



 
 
DS 17-174 (Munro) 
February 26, 2018 
Conditions of Approval 
Page 2 of 2 
 
*Acknowledgement and acceptance of conditions of approval. 
 
 
 
    ___________ 
Property Owner Signature Printed Name Date 
 
 

Once signed, please return to the Community Planning & Building Department. 

47



48

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment C - DPR



49



50



51

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment D - Phase II



52



53



54



55



56



SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S STANDARDS FOR THE TREATMENT OF 
HISTORIC PROPERTIES 

 
1. “A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that 

requires minimal change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site 
and environment." 

 
2. "The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved.  The 

removal of historic materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize 
a property shall be avoided." 

 
3. "Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use.  

Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding 
conjectural features or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be 
undertaken."  

 
4. "Most properties change over time; changes that have acquired historic 

significance in their own right shall be retained and preserved."  
 
5. "Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 

craftsmanship that characterize a property shall be preserved." 
 
6. "Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced.  Where the 

severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new 
feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, 
where possible, materials.  Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated 
by documentary, physical, and pictorial evidence." 

 
7. "Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to 

historic materials shall not be used.  The surface cleaning of structures, if 
appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest means possible." 

 
8. "Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and 

preserved.  If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be 
undertaken. 

 
9. "New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy 

historic materials that characterize the property.  The new work shall be 
differentiated from the old and be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and 
architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its 
environment." 

 
10.  "New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in 

such a manner that if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the 
historic property and its environment would be unimpaired." 

 

57

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment E - Secretary's Standards



58



59



60



61



62



63


	SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA
	A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	B.  TOUR OF INSPECTION
	C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	D.  APPEARANCES
	E.   CONSENT AGENDA
	I.  ADJOURNMENT


	DS 17-459 (Rezai) - HRB Packet.pdf
	Attach B - Conditions of Approval.pdf
	CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING
	CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	DS 17-459


	DS 17-174 (Munro) - HRB Packet.pdf
	DS 17-174 (Munro) - Attach B - Conditions of Approval.pdf
	CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING
	CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	DS 17-174 (Munro)


	Attach B - Conditions of Approval.pdf
	CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING
	CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	DS 17-459




